
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
September 3, 2013 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates 
 
(b) Nomination papers 
 
(c) Conservation Commission Report 
 
(d) Permission to apply for a Maine Natural Resource Conservation Program grant 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
96. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 16, 2013, on 

amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” regarding changing all day parking to 
two hour parking on sections of upper Park Row, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 
97. The Town Council will consider a request from the Brunswick Downtown Association 

for use of the Lower Mall for the Taste of Brunswick Event, to be held on September 28, 
2013, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Knight) 

ACTION 
 
98. The Town Council will consider approving the Communications Officers Union contract, 

and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
ACTION 

 



2 
 

99. The Town Council Chair will appoint Council members to a subcommittee that will 
review TIF requests from MRRA, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Wilson) 

ACTION 
 
100. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of July 29, 2013 
(b) Approval of the Minutes of August 8, 2013 
(c) Abatement of Uncollectable Real Estate taxes 
(d) Reappointment of Mike Feldman to Voter Registration Appeals Board 
(e) Utility Permit approvals for Maine Natural Gas for sections of Meadowbrook Road, 

Breckan Road, Sparwell Lane, and Hemlock Road 
(f) Utility Permit approvals for Maine Natural Gas for sections of Maine Street, 

Stanwood Street, Douglas Street, and Page Street 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 



3 
 

 
Brunswick Town Council 

Agenda  
September 3, 2013 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:  Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(b) Nomination papers:  This is the final notice that nomination papers for School Board and 

Town Council for districts 1, 2, and 6 are due by Friday, September 6th at 4:30 p.m. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(c) Conservation Commission Annual Report:  A copy of the Committee’s report is included 

in your packet. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required  
 
(d) Permission to apply for a Maine Natural Resource Conservation Program grant:  This 

item will give the Town permission to apply for this grant.  If received, funds will be 
used at the Kate Furbish Preserve to remove a dam, re-grade and replant disturbed areas, 
treat the common reed stand, and address areas of erosion along the perimeter leading to 
the work site.  The Town will be partnering with the Maine Coast Heritage Trust and 
Casco Bay Estuary Partnership.  Copies of a detailed memo from Dan Devereaux and a 
draft of the Letter of Intent Summary Form are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to allow the Town to apply for a Maine Natural Resource Conservation Program 
grant to be used at the Kate Furbish Preserve. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
96. This item is to set a public hearing for September 17, 2013, on amendments to Chapter 15 

“Traffic and Vehicles” regarding changing all day parking to two-hour parking on 
sections of upper Park Row.  Bowdoin College had included two-hour parking spots 
when they requested the direction of Park Row to be changed earlier this year, but staff 
missed the request at that time.  The purpose of this change is to provide turnover of the 
parking and to discourage all day parking by Bowdoin staff and students.  This would 
designate seven parking spots for two-hour parking directly in front of the Museum of 
Art.  The Police Chief has temporarily put this restriction in place under Section 15-2 of 



4 
 

the Municipal Code.  Copies of a memo from Manager Brown, a map, draft language, 
and the Police Chief's memo are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to set a public hearing for September 17, 2013, on amendments to Chapter 15 
“Traffic and Vehicles” regarding changing all day parking to two-hour parking on 
sections of upper Park Row. 

 
97. This item, sponsored by Councilor Knight, is to consider approving a request from the 

Brunswick Downtown Association for use of the Lower Mall for the Taste of Brunswick 
Event, to be held on September 28, 2013.  This event has been rescheduled from spring to 
this new date and will be done in conjunction with the Mid Coast Hunger Prevention 
Program’s Sing for Your Supper event.  A copy of the letter of request is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to approve a request from the Brunswick Downtown Association for use of the 
Lower Mall for the Taste of Brunswick Event, to be held on September 28, 2013. 

 
98. This item is to consider approving the Communications Officers Union contract.  Their 

agreement is consistent with the other units, which the Council has previously approved.  
There will be a 2% COLA increase in each of the three years.  A copy of a memo from 
Manager Brown is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to approve the Communication Officers Union contract. 

 
99. This item is for the Council Chair to appoint Council members to a subcommittee to 

review requests from MRRA.  
 

Suggested Motion:   
The Council Chair will be appointing this committee. 

 
100. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  The only application at this time is a new vacancy on the 
Cable TV committee.  A copy of the application is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of July 29, 2013:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

 



5 
 

(b)  Approval of the Minutes of August 8, 2013: A copy of the minutes is included in 
your packet. 

 
(c) Abatement of Uncollectable Real Estate taxes:  This item abates uncollectable real 

estate taxes.  A copy of the memo is included in your packet. 
 
(d) Reappointment of Mike Feldman to Voter Registration Appeals Board:  State Law 

requires the Council to appoint the Chair of this committee.  The Town Clerk 
nominates the person for the Council approval.  Mr. Feldman has been chair for 
several years and the Clerk is requesting his reappointment. 

 
(e) Utility Permit approvals for Maine Natural Gas for sections of Meadowbrook Road, 

Breckan Road, Sparwell Lane, and Hemlock Road: 
 

In application ULP 2013-11, Meadowbrook Road   Maine Natural Gas seeks 
authorization to install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on 
east side of Maine Street at the south side of Meadowbrook Road. The new gas main 
will run from the proposed gas main along the south side of Meadowbrook Road, 
crossing Sparwell Lane, continuing along the south side of Meadowbrook Road to 
Stowe Lane; at Stowe Lane the gas main will cross to the north side of Meadowbrook 
Road and run to a point just west of the sewer pump station. In most cases the gas 
main will be installed outside the paved street. Approximately 3300 feet of 2” gas 
main. 
In application ULP 2013-12, Breckan Road  Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization 
to install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of 
Meadowbrook Rd. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main south 
across Meadowbrook Rd along the westerly and southerly side of Breckan Rd to a 
point just east of #20 Breckan Rd. In most cases the gas main will be installed outside 
the paved street. Approximately 1350 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-13, Sparwell Lane  Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization 
to install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the south side of 
Meadowbrook Rd just west of Sparwell Lane. The new gas main will run from the 
proposed gas main along the south side of Sparwell Lane to Stowe Lane then cross to 
the north side of Sparwell Lane and run to the end of the public way. In most cases 
the gas main will be installed outside the paved street. Approximately 1970 feet of 2” 
gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-14, Hemlock Rd   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of 
Sparwell Lane. The new gas main will run from the existing gas main across Sparwell 
Lane to the east side of Hemlock Rd then run southerly along the east side of 
Hemlock Lane to a point just south of Juniper Lane. In most cases the gas main will 
be installed outside the paved street. Approximately 1830 feet of 2” gas main. 

  



6 
 

 
(f) Utility Permit approvals for Maine Natural Gas for sections of Maine Street, 

Stanwood Street, Douglas Street and Page Street: 
 

In application ULP 2013-06, Maine Street   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 4” gas main from the existing gas main located just north of Zeitler Farm 
Road on the north side of Maine Street. The new gas main will run from the existing 
gas main northerly along the west side of Maine Street about 2 feet off edge of 
pavement to a point opposite the south side of Meadowbrook Road then across Maine 
Street to the south side of Meadowbrook Road. Approximately 550 feet of 4” gas 
main. 
In application ULP 2013-07, Stanwood Street   Maine Natural Gas seeks 
authorization to install a 2” gas main from the existing gas main located on the north 
side of Hennessey Avenue west of Stanwood Street. The new gas main will run from 
the existing gas main easterly across Stanwood Street to a point 2 or 3 feet behind the 
curb, then the gas main will run northerly in the sidewalk to a point in the vicinity of 
9 Stanwood Street, then the gas main will run westerly across Stanwood Street to a 
point about 2 feet behind the curb, then the gas main will run northerly about 2 feet 
behind the curb to the existing gas main southeasterly of the Sunshine Laundry Mat.  
Approximately 1050 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-08, Douglas Street   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization 
to install a 2” gas main from the existing gas main located just east of Douglas Street 
on the north side of Belmont Street. The new gas main will run from the existing gas 
main northerly along the east side of Douglas Street about 1 foot off edge of 
pavement to Boody Street, and the gas main will run southerly, about 1 foot off edge 
of pavement, from the existing gas main at Belmont Street to Columbia Avenue. 
Approximately 725 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-10, Page St   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the existing gas main located under the sidewalk on the 
west side of Union Street on the north side of Page Street. The new gas main will run 
from the existing gas main westerly along the north side of Page Street under the 
sidewalk to Spring Street. Approximately 1025 feet of 2” gas main. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 











 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 













 
 

 
ITEM 96 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE:  August 19, 2013  
  
RE: 2 hour parking on upper Park Row          
 

Earlier this year the Council approved reversing the direction of traffic on Park Row. 
During the discussion of this, there was also discussion regarding changing several of 
the parking spaces from all day to two hour parking. The purpose of this change is to 
provide turnover of the parking and to discourage all day parking by Bowdoin staff and 
students.  
 
Attached is a copy of the plan that was discussed at the April 22 Council meeting. 
 
The recommendation from Town staff, supported by the College, is to designate 7 
spaces on Upper Park Row as two hour parking. The spaces would be directly in front 
of the Museum of Art. 
 
The Chief has designated this section as recommended so that it will be in effect by the 
time students arrive. The Council is being asked to amend the parking ordinance so 
that this will be in effect permanently. 
 
 

 



O:\Word\Ordinances\Code Supplement 26 starting Sept 2012\Chapter 15 Park Row change two hour parking Sept l 2013.docx 

 

Proposed Ordinance Amendments 
Providing for Two-hour parking on  

sections of Upper Park Row 
Drafted – 08/25/2013 

Public Hearing –  
Adopted – 
Effective –  

 
 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Brunswick, Maine, that Chapter 15, 
Articles III, the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Town of Brunswick, Maine, is amended by 
adding the underlined language as follows: 

 
Chapter 15 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES 
Article IV. 

Stopping, Standing, Parking 
 
Sec. 15-76. Restricted on-street parking areas. 
 
 (a)  A person shall not park a vehicle for more than two (2) consecutive hours in any 
parking space adjacent to a curb between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day except 
Friday, Sunday, and a public holiday and between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. on Friday 
in the following areas: …. 

 
Park Row,Commencing at the driveway/footpath on the south side of the Walker Art 
Museum and continuing north to the driveway/footpath on the north side of the Walker 
Art Museum. 

 
 
 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town Council at their Regular Meeting held on ______ 2013.   
It will become effective thirty days after adoption.  
 
Attest: ________________________  
  Town Clerk 
 







 
 

 
ITEM 97 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 98 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE:  August 19, 2013  
  
RE: Tentative agreement with Brunswick Dispatch         
 

We have a tentative agreement with the Brunswick Dispatch staff.  The summary is that 
we have agreed to the same terms as the other contracts approved this year. The unit 
will receive a 2% cost of living (COLA) increase in each of the three years of the 
agreement. The cost to fund this increase is approximately $9,000.  
 
The only language changes to the contract make reference to the Chief of Police, 
where previously the reference was to the Police Commander. As part of the 
reorganization of the Police Department a few years ago, we eliminated the positions of 
Police Commander and now have a Deputy Chief and Captain. 
 
This agreement was achieved without any actual negotiations, but rather an informal 
discussion between the Union leadership and me. Councilor Favreau approved of the 
tentative agreement, based on the previous agreements that the Council has approved.  

 



 
 

 
ITEM 99 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 100 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 







 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



-Draft- 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
July 29, 2013 

6:30 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. 

Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, John Richardson, Jr. and 
Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Benjamin J. Tucker 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Anna Breinich, Director 
of Planning and Development; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; Denise Clavette, 
Business Development Manager; Joel Bruce, Police Sergeant; and TV 
video crew. 

 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order, asked for the Pledge of Allegiance and asked the Town 
Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Leon Thayer, 91 Pleasant Street, spoke on the status of the Police Station and thanked those 
who serve our country in the military. 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Perreault announced a meeting of the Train Layover Facility advisory group on 
Tuesday. 
 
Councilor Favreau said the Sewer District will be providing the Council with a tour on August 
15, 2013, at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Councilor Watson read a Proclamation from the Governor regarding the soldiers who served in 
the Korean War.  He spoke about the Gold Star representing those who gave their lives. 
 
Councilor Brayman spoke about having temporary speed bumps on Longfellow Avenue, and 
stated that public comments are allowed on all items that are on the agenda. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  None 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
(a) Council Committee Updates 
 
Reports were given on the Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation 
Committee and formation of a redistricting subcommittee. 
 
(b) MMA Annual Election of Vice President and Executive Board (Action Required) 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the slate of 
nominations for the MMA Vice President and Executive Committee Members as presented 
on the voting ballot.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the ballot will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(c) Report on the Marketing Brunswick Initiative (Action Required)  
 
Debora King, BDA Executive Director, and Denise Clavette, Business Development Manager, 
spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Knight, Councilor Favreau, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Brayman, and Councilor 
Watson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to endorse the Marketing 
Brunswick Initiative’s outcome and support its use by the community and the Town.  The 
motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Pols was opposed. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Ms. Clavette and other supporting materials will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
(d) Update on the Police Station 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to a question from Councilor Pols. 
 
(e) (ADDED) Sergeant Joel Bruce retiring 
 
Manager Brown recognized Sergeant Bruce for his service to this community. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
85. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on an application for a special 

amusement license, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement  
Jimbo’s Catering    James Gallant 
D/B/A: 1898 Bar & Grill 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 
 

165 River Road 
 
Chair Wilson opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve a renewal application 
for a special amusement license for Jimbo’s Catering, located at 165 River Road.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 

 
86. The Town Council will hear public comments on a MRRA TIF for the Executive 

Airport, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor Tucker and Councilor 
Richardson) 

 
Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this item.  He was glad the Town and MRRA are at this 
point, and hopes the Council will approve the TIFs.  They provide a chance for the Town and 
MRRA to work in a partnership, and to send a strong message that both parties are working 
together to help redevelop the base.  MRRA will be able to do their infrastructure, which will 
assist in attracting businesses to the base.  Plus, the Town will be able to receive revenues to be 
used similar to the uses outlined in the Molnlycke TIF, as well as use for school debt service.  
Quality schools will help MRRA market the base property to businesses.  The TIFs provide a 
chance to improve on the Town’s schools and will help with success at the base.  He thanked the 
MRRA board and staff for their work on the TIFs. 
 
Chair Wilson opened the public hearing. 
 
John Peters, Chair of MRRA Board, spoke in support of the TIFs. The MRRA board 
enthusiastically supports both TIF applications.  The establishment of the districts will help both 
the Town and MRRA, and this is a unique opportunity to generate property tax revenues.  Since 
the closing of the base, MRRA has become the third largest taxpayer in Brunswick, and they are 
also the master developer for the base, also including maintaining the streets and utility systems.  
Many of them are old and need to be updated; MRRA needs revenues to assist in these upgrades.  
They plan to resurface roadways, replace street lights, and upgrade water and sewer systems. 
They have identified $77 million of capital projects over the next five years. Without the TIFs 
resources, these improvements would be delayed, which would delay redevelopment and 
creation of new tax revenue.  They hope to get $12 million in TIF revenues.  He urged the 
Council to approve these TIFs. 
 
[Editor’s Note: MRRA is a tax-exempt entity, but MRRA collects tax payments from its lessees 
and then pays the collected taxes to the town.] 
 
Sandra Updegraph, 724 Durham Road and MRRA board member, spoke in support of the TIFs 
and spoke on the process that this negotiating committee went through to arrive at this 
conclusion.  She was honored to be appointed to this committee, all of whom worked well 
together.  This was a turning point in MRRA’s relationship with the Town, with Brunswick 
Landing becoming part of the community.  She thanked the Council for their efforts and urged 
them to support these two TIF programs. 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Steve Weems, 44 Thompson Street and MRRA board member, spoke in support of the TIFs. He 
is speaking as a resident and as someone who has worked for economic development in   
Brunswick.  He reiterated MRRA’s unconditional support of these programs.  As a Brunswick 
resident and taxpayer, he feels they are great deals for the Town and MRRA.  The base 
redevelopment success is fully dependent on quality of life, including schools and other aspects 
of life in Brunswick.  It is an investment in the Town and it is an outstanding financial deal.  He 
provided numbers regarding what the 30 year projection for the TIF numbers are based on, 
which are conservative, with no new valuation after year seven.  Over 30 years $51 million 
dollars of new tax revenues will be generated for Brunswick, with the Town receiving $26 
million.  All uses of MRRA funds require Council approval.  Most of the infrastructure are utility 
and roads, which are normally either the Town or the utility’s responsibility, but is MRRA’s 
instead. 
 
Leon Thayer, 91 Pleasant Street, asked how much of TIF would be used for things like bio 
plants and other uses. 
 
Chair Wilson closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “Town Council 
Resolution - Adopting the Development Program for the Brunswick Executive Airport 
Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District.”   
 
Councilor Richardson thanked the staff, who played a critical role in this item.  After the 
approval, it will be the professional staff who will work with MRRA to determine their needs.  
He urged support for this vote to assist MRRA with their infrastructure needs.  MRRA’s success 
is the Town’s success and vice versa.  In the end, the story that will be told is that the Town and 
MRRA took a major step to assist in the redevelopment of the base and increase the economic 
development vitality of this Town.  The Town can partner with MRRA to move forward.  The 
process still includes approval by the Commissioner of the Department of Economic 
Development.   
 
Councilor Perreault asked if there was conditional support for the school debt service payment.  
Councilor Richardson responded the Commissioner indicated there was support for this to be 
included, pending a review of the final language submitted to DECD.   
 
Councilor Perreault asked if the citizen’s letter claiming that any Town activity with MRRA is 
illegal is not accurate.  Manager Brown indicated that the claim has been reviewed by the Town 
Attorney and Attorney General and they determined it had no merit.   
 
Councilor Brayman spoke in support of the TIFs and thanked all on the negotiating committee 
for their hard work.  It is a careful balance to meet all the many needs the Town has in this 
difficult budget time, and it will promote growth at the base.  She asked if any changes in 
language need to come back to Council.  Manager Brown responded that substantive changes do 
come back, with the Manager having the authority on minor administration things. 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 5 
 

 
 

 
Shana Cook Mueller, Bernstein Shur, attorney representing the Town, agreed with Manager 
Brown. 
 
Councilor Perreault said MRRA will come before the Town to request what they want to spend 
funds on.  The Council can say “no” to a request if they do not agree with its use. 
 
Councilor Richardson agreed with this, and added when they come to the Council, it gives 
MRRA a chance to tell their story, and both sides can embrace this collectively. 
 
Councilor Favreau asked a question about what the difference is between the two TIFs, to which 
Councilor Richardson responded it is geography. 
 
Manager Brown said the Town will still receive an advantage on school valuation formula and 
revenue sharing funding formula shifts by doing the TIFs.   
 
Councilor Knight asked if there is a limitation on the geographic area a town can shelter under 
TIFs.  Manager Brown responded the Town has plenty of capacity with 2.85% of town’s 
property in TIFs, which is just over half of the 5% allowed. 
 
Councilor Watson spoke regarding this item.  With these TIFs, it brings MRRA and the Town 
together and creates a community.   
 
Vote on motion: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “Town Council 
Resolution - Adopting the Development Program for the Brunswick Executive Airport 
Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District.”  The motion carried with 
eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted Application for a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
87. The Town Council will hear public comments on a MRRA TIF for Brunswick 

Landing, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor Tucker and Councilor 
Richardson) 

 
Chair Wilson spoke on behalf of Councilor Tucker, who was unable to make it tonight.  He 
asked her to share that he urged the Council to vote for the TIFs and expects them to be approved 
by the Commissioner, since both sides worked together on them.  He added if the programs come 
back with any substantive changes they will come back to the Council for their approval. 
 
Chair Wilson opened the public hearing. 
 
Leon Thayer, 91 Pleasant Street, asked how much of Brunswick Landing will be industrial and 
how much residential.   



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
Chair Wilson closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adopt “Town Council 
Resolution - Adopting the Development Program for the Brunswick Landing Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District.”   
 
Councilor Richardson responded to Mr. Thayer’s question from the last item.  The Town does 
not know at this point what MRRA will ask for, but expects it to be infrastructure or some other 
creative project.  MRRA makes the decisions on what they will be requesting from the Council. 
 
Councilor Favreau spoke regarding this item.  He thanked all those involved in negotiations and 
the MRRA Board.  He cannot wait to see the development continue on the base. 
 
Vote on motion: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adopt “Town Council 
Resolution - Adopting the Development Program for the Brunswick Landing Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District.”  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas. 
 
Chair Wilson spoke regarding this item and said at a future meeting she is going to be appointing 
a three member Council subcommittee to review MRRA’s requests.   
 
Councilor Pols asked how long will it take for approval of the TIFs.  Councilor Richardson, 
Manager Brown, and Ms. Cook Muller felt it would be relativity quickly. 
 
(A copy of the adopted Application for a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
88. The Town Council will hear public comments on budget amendments to the 2013-14 

Municipal budget, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 
Chair Wilson opened the public hearing. 
 
The following people spoke regarding this item: 
Jane Millett, 10 Franklin Street 
Ed Blot, 12 High Street 
 
Chair Wilson closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Pols, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Knight, Councilor Favreau, and Councilor 
Watson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Brayman asked questions, to which Manager Brown 
responded. 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 7 
 

 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 
84. The Town Council will consider endorsing the Route 24 Corridor Plan, and will 

take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Knight) 
 
Councilor Knight spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Councilor Knight responded. 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to endorse the Route 24 
Corridor Management Plan, dated June 27, 2013, in support of the contained findings and 
recommendations.  The Town of Brunswick will work with MaineDOT, the Midcoast 
Council of Governments and participating towns to support the plan’s implementation as 
funding becomes available.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the endorsed plan will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
89. The Town Council will consider approving the selection of the Construction 

Manager and Architectural firm for the new Town Hall renovation project at 
McLellan Building, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor Watson, 
Councilor Favreau, and Councilor Knight) 

 
Dana Bateman, 13 Franklin Street, and Jane Millett, 10 Franklin Street, spoke regarding this 
item. 
 
Councilor Knight, Councilor Favreau, and Councilor Watson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson and Councilor Pols asked questions, to which Manager Brown responded. 
 
Councilor Brayman, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Pols, and Councilor Richardson spoke 
regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson asked a question, to which Councilor Favreau responded. 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to authorize the Town Manager to 
enter into an agreement with Warren Construction Group to provide Construction 
Manager services for the Town Hall renovation project at the McLellan Building.  The 
motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Perreault was opposed. 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to authorize the Town Manager to 
enter into an agreement with Scott Simons Architects to provide architectural services for 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 8 
 

 
 

the Town Hall renovation project at the McLellan Building.  The motion carried with seven 
(7) yeas.  Councilor Perreault was opposed. 
 
90. The Town Council will consider a request for Sellers of Prepared Food on Public 

Ways for outdoor seating for Frosty’s Donuts, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager)  

 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve a license for Seller of 
Prepared Food on Public Ways on a Sidewalk for Frosty’s Donuts, located at 54 Maine 
Street.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
91. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
 
Councilor Watson nominated the following people: 
 

Earle Harvey for reappointment to the Sewer District Board of Trustees 
Steven Garrett for reappointment to the ZBA 
Claude Philippon for reappointment to the Water District 
Don Kniseley for reappointment to the Davis Fund 

 
The Council voted eight (8) yeas to reappoint these people to serve on their respective Boards. 
 
Councilor Watson nominated the following people for the Recreation Commission, with the 
Appointment Committee wishing to fill 3 of the 4 spots. 
 

Jeff Ward 
Daniel Ankeles 
Tammy Dostie-Gray 

 
Councilor Perreault nominated Rebecca Banks for the last opening. 
 
The Council voted: 
 
Jeff Ward received seven (7) votes and was appointed. 
Daniel Ankeles received eight (8) votes and was appointed. 
Tammy Dostie-Gray received eight (8) votes and was appointed. 
 
Rebecca Banks received three (3) votes but did not receive the five (5) that are required for 
appointment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of July 15, 2013 
(b) Approval of Gas utility location permit applications for MacMillan Drive, 

Colonial Drive, and Richards Drive 



Town Council Minutes 
July 29, 2013 
Page 9 
 

 
 

(c) Approval of Post Issuance Compliance Policy 
 
Councilor Brayman spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Knight asked questions, to which Manager Brown and John 
Eldridge responded. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(Copies of materials for CA-B and CA-C will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:47 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
August 6, 2013 

September 3, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Special Meeting Minutes 
August 8, 2013 

4:00 P.M. 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. 

Favreau, Margo H. Knight, and John Richardson, Jr. 
 
Councilors Absent: Councilors Benjamin J. Tucker, Sarah E. Brayman, and Benet Pols 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Terry Goan, Patrol 
Officer; and TV video crew. 

 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order, asked for the Pledge of Allegiance and asked the Town 
Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
NEW BUSINESS ITEMS:  
 
93. The Town Council will consider amending the 2013-2014 School Budget Articles, 

and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 
Councilor Watson and Councilor Richardson asked questions, to which Manager Brown 
responded. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adopt the articles as written.  
The motion carried with six (6) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Articles will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
94. The Town Council will consider a warrant for the School Budget Validation 

Referendum to be held on August 20, 2013, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Election Warrant for 
the School Budget Validation Referendum to be held on August 20, 2013.   The motion 
carried with six (6) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Warrant for the School Budget Validation Referendum will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
95. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Amending the Municipal 

Budget For the Period July 1, 2013, and ending on the June 30, 2014,” and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 



 2

MAIN MOTION 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to adopt “A Resolution Amending 
the Municipal Budget For the Period July 1, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2014.”   
 
AMENDMENT 
Councilor Perreault moved, to add back the call firefighters’ pay and to charge insurance 
companies for fire truck responses to car accidents.  There was no second so the motion did 
not stand.  
 
Councilor Favreau asked a question, to which Manager Brown responded. 
 
Councilor Richardson, Councilor Perreault, Manager Brown, and Chair Wilson spoke regarding 
this item.   
 
AMENDMENT 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to add back in the $9,000 to the 
call line to be funded by the Town’s portion of the Recreation building sale if sold above 
$250,000.  
 
Councilor Perreault spoke on the amendment. 
 
Councilor Watson asked a question, to which Manager Brown and Councilor Richardson 
responded.  
 
VOTE ON AMENDMENT 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to add back in the $9,000 to the 
call line to be funded by the Town’s portion of the Recreation building sale if sold above 
$250,000.  The motion carried with four (4) yeas.  Councilor Knight and Chair Wilson were 
opposed. 
 
Councilor Knight spoke on this item. 
 
MAIN MOTION WITH AMENDMENT 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to adopt “A Resolution Amending 
the Municipal Budget For the Period July 1, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2014” as amended 
above.  The motion carried with four (4) yeas.  Councilor Knight and Chair Wilson were 
opposed. 
 
(A copy of the Resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Warden and Deputy Warden appointments 
 

Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to appoint Fran Smith as 
Warden and Elin Gould as Deputy Warden for the Election on August 20, 2013.  The 
motion carried with six (6) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with six (6) yeas. 



 3

 
The meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
August 9, 2013 

September 3, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

 

 

Brunswick, Maine 
John A. Foster, PE 
Town Engineer/Director PWD 
e-mail:  foster@brunswickme.org 

Public Works Department 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, Maine  04011 
(207) 725-6654  
FAX (207) 725-6655 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 TO: Gary Brown, Town Manager 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Director, PWD 

 DATE: August 23, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Utility Location Permits 
 

Attached, for presentation to the Town Council are four applications for Utility Location Permits 
received from Maine Natural Gas. 
 
In application ULP 2013-11, Meadowbrook Road       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on east side of Maine St at the 
south side of Meadowbrook Rd. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main along the 
south side of Meadowbrook Rd, crossing Sparwell Ln continuing along the south side of 
Meadowbrook Rd  to Stowe Ln, at Stowe Ln the gas main will cross to the north side of 
Meadowbrook Rd and run to a point just west of the sewer pump station. In most cases the gas 
main will be installed outside the paved street. Approximately 3300 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-12, Breckan Road     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of Meadowbrook Rd. The 
new gas main will run from the proposed gas main south across Meadowbrook Rd along the 
westerly and southerly side of Breckan Rd to a point just east of #20 Breckan Rd. In most cases 
the gas main will be installed outside the paved street. Approximately 1350 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-13, Sparwell Lane       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to located on the south side of Meadowbrook Rd just 
west of Sparwell Lane. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main along the south 
side of Sparwell Ln to Stowe Ln then cross to the north side of Sparwell Ln and run to the end of 
the public way. In most cases the gas main will be installed outside the paved street. 
Approximately 1970 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-14, Hemlock Rd      Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the north side of Sparwell Ln. The new 
gas main will run from the existing gas main across Sparwell Ln to the east side of Hemlock Rd 
then run southerly along the east side of Hemlock Ln to a point just south of Juniper Ln. In most 
cases the gas main will be installed outside the paved street. Approximately 1830 feet of 2” gas 
main. 
 
Brunswick Public Works Department has no objection to these underground utility lines as 
proposed, providing it is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The final location is subject to adjustment, as determined necessary by the Town 

Engineer, to provide adequate clearance from any underground facilities located by 
field verification by each utility. 

2. All work is subject to compliance with the Town’s Street Opening and road 
restoration requirements. 



jhiggins
Typewritten Text

jhiggins
Typewritten Text
2013-11



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
2013-12



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
2013-13



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
2013-14



9 
In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
kw

ay
PO

 B
ox

 9
9

B
ru

ns
w

ic
k,

 M
ai

ne
 0

40
11

GRAPHIC SCALE

GRAPHIC SCALE



9 
In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
kw

ay
PO

 B
ox

 9
9

B
ru

ns
w

ic
k,

 M
ai

ne
 0

40
11

GRAPHIC SCALE









 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA -F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Brunswick, Maine 
John A. Foster, PE 
Town Engineer/Director PWD 
e-mail:  foster@brunswickme.org 

Public Works Department 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, Maine  04011 
(207) 725-6654  
FAX (207) 725-6655 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 TO: Gary Brown, Town Manager 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Director, PWD 

 DATE: August 23, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Utility Location Permits 
 

Attached, for presentation to the Town Council are four applications for Utility Location Permits 
received from Maine Natural Gas. 
 
In application ULP 2013-06, Maine Street       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
4” gas main from the existing gas main located just north of Zeitler Farm Road on the north side 
of Maine Street. The new gas main will run from the existing gas main northerly along the west 
side of Maine Street about 2 feet off edge of pavement to a point opposite the south side of 
Meadowbrook Road then across Maine Street to the south side of Meadowbrook Road. 
Approximately 550 feet of 4” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-07, Stanwood Street     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install 
a 2” gas main from the existing gas main located on the north side of Hennessey Avenue west of 
Stanwood Street. The new gas main will run from the existing gas main easterly across Stanwood 
Street to a point 2 or 3feet behind the curb, then the gas main will run northerly in the sidewalk to 
a point in the vicinity of 9 Stanwood Street, then the gas main will run westerly across Stanwood 
Street to a point about 2 feet behind the curb, then the gas main will run northerly about 2 feet 
behind the curb to the existing gas main southeasterly of the Sunshine Landry Mat.  
Approximately 1050 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-08, Douglas Street       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install 
a 2” gas main from the existing gas main located just east of Douglas Street on the north side of 
Belmont Street. The new gas main will run from the existing gas main northerly along the east 
side of Douglas Street about 1 foot off edge of pavement to Boody Street, and the gas main will 
run southerly, about 1 foot off edge of pavement, from the existing gas main at Belmont Street to 
Columbia Avenue. Approximately 725 feet of 2” gas main. 
In application ULP 2013-10, Page St       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 2” gas 
main from the existing gas main located under the sidewalk on the west side of Union Street on 
the north side of Page Street. The new gas main will run from the existing gas main westerly 
along the north side of Page Street under the sidewalk to Spring Street. Approximately 1025 feet 
of 2” gas main. 
 
Brunswick Public Works Department has no objection to these underground utility lines as 
proposed, providing it is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The final location is subject to adjustment, as determined necessary by the Town 

Engineer, to provide adequate clearance from any underground facilities located by 
field verification by each utility. 

2. Maine Natural Gas agrees to replace the the sidewalk and curb on Page St from 
Union St to Spring St. And on Stanwood St from the railroad tracks to the 
reconstructed sidewalk just south of the new police station. 



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2013-06



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2013-07



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2013-08



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2013-10










	Agenda - September 3, 2013.pdf
	Binder1
	96 yes
	96 1   memo regarding 2 hour parking on Park Row
	96 Chapter 15 Park Row change two hour parking Sept l 2013
	96 map_20130828103640
	96 Park Row Parking Changes
	97 yes
	97 bda_20130828103710
	98 yes
	98 August 19 memo regarding Dispatch contract
	99 no
	100 yes
	100 2013 Breitbard Bernie CableTV
	ca a yes
	ca a July 29 2013 min
	ca b yes
	ca b aug 8th
	ca c yes
	ca e yes
	ca c uncoll_20130828103609
	ca e UtilityLocationPermitApplications
	ManagerLocationNoticeAugust2312013.pdf
	Brunswick, Maine
	MEMORANDUM


	ca e Gas Main Layout
	ca f yes
	ca f GasMainApplications
	ManagerLocationNoticeAugust2312013.pdf
	Brunswick, Maine
	MEMORANDUM


	ca f GasMainPlans
	MR Report AllBinder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	mr a no
	mr b no
	mr c yes
	mr c conser_20130828103525

	mr d  ALL memo 1st 20130828091342





